
Multiple files are bound together in this PDF Package.

Adobe recommends using Adobe Reader or Adobe Acrobat version 8 or later to work with 
documents contained within a PDF Package. By updating to the latest version, you’ll enjoy 
the following benefits:  

•  Efficient, integrated PDF viewing 

•  Easy printing 

•  Quick searches 

Don’t have the latest version of Adobe Reader?  

Click here to download the latest version of Adobe Reader

If you already have Adobe Reader 8, 
click a file in this PDF Package to view it.

http://www.adobe.com/products/acrobat/readstep2.html




 


 


CITY OF LUDINGTON 
BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS 


Minutes – March 20, 2001 
 


A regular meeting of the Ludington Board of Zoning Appeals was held on March 20, 2001 at the 
Ludington Senior Center, 308 S. Rowe St., Ludington, MI, and was called to order by Tom Tyron, 
Chairperson at 5:30 p.m. 


PRESENT:  Tom Tyron, Kaye Holman, Kathy Saxton, Christine Warne, and Joe Moloney 
  
 ABSENT:    Greg Dykstra, Ken Vanderbilt (excused) and Brian Purtee (excused) 
 


ALSO PRESENT:  City Attorney, Roger Anderson, Building Inspector, John Healy and 
Recording Secretary Carol A Foote 


 
ROLL CALL:  The roll call gave the above results. 
 
MINUTES:   A motion was made by Kaye Holman seconded by Joe Moloney, to approve the minutes of 
the meeting of November 21, 2000.   Motion carried unanimously. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING 
Consideration of a request from Dr. William Ingle for an interpretation of City of Ludington Zoning 
Ordinance #23-00 for the use of the property located at 420 N. Rath, TINKHAM'S ADDITION LOT 5 
EXCEPT THE S 2 FT OF THE E 60 FT THEREOF BLOCK 15.  
 
Dr. William Ingle, 1744 N. Marilyn Ave, I am not asking for a variance or a change. I am asking 
for it to continue as it was. I have a couple of tax statements here, and my property is still zoned 
commercial.  Mr. Healy is saying he wants it converted back to residential.  
 
Kaye Holman stated that the property was not zoned commercial, but R2A, with a 
nonconforming use.  John Healy stated that the commercial status was a tax class, not zoning.  
He also explained that the current use, general office, was not similar enough to the 
nonconforming use to let it continue.   
 
City Attorney, Roger Anderson, explained to the Board members about legal nonconforming 
use.  The position that has always been taken is that the use does not have to be exactly the same 
to continue the nonconforming use.  The nonconforming use ceases after the use stops.  If this 
property was converted to a residence, they could not start office use there.  This property is 
zoned R2A.  Zoning class and tax class are two different things.  If the property owner does not 
like the decision of the Zoning Administrator, he has the right to appeal the decision.  In this 
case, John Healy has determined that the Staircase use is not similar enough to a professional 
office to continue it as a nonconforming use.  
 
Connie Krusniak, 201 S James St., board member for Staircase, addressed the Board as to what 
Staircase is and what they do.  She explained that they were a non profit organization that has 
been in community for twenty years.  They provide counseling services and crisis intervention 
services in a five county area.  They work closely with the schools and the courts.  The nature of 
the work is outreach, so they do not have the traffic that a medical office does.  They would have 
3-5 clients or families coming from the building in a given day with a staff of three or 4.  It is a 
professional office; state licensed, and state funded.  It is providing professional service. It is not 
contemplated that there will be any additional hardship brought to the neighborhood.  There will 







Board of Zoning Appeals 
Meeting Minutes  
03/20/01 
 


 2


be no groups of kids, any loitering or solicitation.  It is pretty consistent of permitted uses, 
churches, daycares and nurseries.  The hours would be nine to five.  If anything, the 
nonconforming use would be decreased, given the traffic and the way it would fit into the 
neighborhood.  Staircase is not buying the property, just a tenant. 
 
Dr. Erv Harvey, President of the board of Staircase and fully licensed psychologist, stated that he 
would like to establish how close they were to any other medical practice.  He supervises the 
director who is a therapist who in turn supervises a group of bachelor level therapist, so in terms 
of being a practitioner’s office, we are indeed a practitioner’s office.   
 
Bonnie Vaught, 502 N. Robert, explained that she had been living in her present home since 
1975.  Before that she lived one block south of her present home.  She remembered being 
surprised at the increased traffic.  She feels that the 400 and 500 blocks of the area have changed 
very little in the past thirty-six years.  The majority of the blocks are single family.  The area is 
and has been zoned residential.  Mrs. Vaught went on the give a history of the uses of the 
property in question.  Medical use continued from 1950 to 1996.  Since then, it has been a relief 
not to have the traffic.  It is important to consider the intent of the zoning ordinance believe it is 
not the intent of the ordinance to penalize or deprive owners of the correct and legal use of their 
property.  Mrs. Vaught explained the off street parking regulations and stated that the lack of off 
street parking has always been a problem.  Although the office has been vacant for twelve 
months, it would seem fair to allow the continuation of medical office.  If the office use were 
allowed to expand beyond that, it would be unfair and not appropriate to the residential needs of 
the area.   She then asked if there would be temporary housing provided by Staircase. 
 
Cindy Arnisan, Director of Staircase, explained that they place run away kids in foster care 
homes.  They are never with them.   
 
Bonnie Vaught stated that she would be against housing either in the office or the home. 
 
Dr. Ingle, stated that there was enough room in the back for three parking spots.  Also, the office 
was not vacant for twelve months.  He had some equipment left there until February of 97.  Then 
in November the respite care went in.  Afterwards a contractor rented it as office space and 
storage.   
 
Mark Otto, board member of Staircase, said that this use would not be any different than any 
therapy type use.  It would be like a physical therapist.  We only see two to three families a day.  
Parking required would be minimal.  Three staff members would be there at the most during 
regular office hours. At no time have we housed anyone in this setting.  We are 90% funded by 
the FIA.  It is in a very limited number.  It is mostly on an outreach basis.  They look for 
runaway potential.  Counseling keeps them off the street. 
 
Close public hearing 
 
Tom Tyron stated that the basic issue was the nonconforming use. 
 







Board of Zoning Appeals 
Meeting Minutes  
03/20/01 
 


 3


 
John Healy explained that if the building were converted back to a residence, it would still be 
nonconforming.  There would be two residences on one parcel.  Mr. Healy explained how he 
based his decision.  He stated that he felt the current use was more general office use rather than 
a professional office use.  My interpretation of the ordinance was not to prolong the use. 
 
Kaye Holman said that she felt that they would be establishing precedence.  A non-medical 
office would open the door for other general uses.  This was an entirely different use than a 
medical doctor.   
 
Kaye Holman made a motion to uphold John Healy’s administrative decision, seconded by Tom 
Tyron.   
 
Christine Warne stated that she felt that their knowledge was similar to medical and she did not 
have a problem with it. 
 
Kathy Saxton stated that she agreed with Christine. 
 
Tom Tyron said that it did not matter who went into the building.  It is a residential area.  He 
said that it was not hard for him to support John Healy. 
 
Motion carried to uphold Mr. Healy’s decision by a three to two vote. 
Moloney, Holman, Tyron, yes        Saxton, Warne, no 
 
Attorney Anderson stated that the property owner had the right of appeal. 
 
Tom Tyron called a recess at 6:30 p.m. 
 
The meeting was called back to order at 6:35 p.m. 
 
OLD BUSINESS:  
None 
 
NEW BUSINESS:  
Set Day, Date, Time and Place of Meetings: 
Joe Moloney made a motion to conduct meetings, when business, on the third Tuesday of the Month at 
5:30 p.m. at the City Hall Building, with the exception of the April 17th meeting being conducted at the 
Senior Center, seconded by Kaye Holman.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 
Election of Officers: 
Kathy Saxton made a motion to table the election officers until the April meeting, seconded by Joe 
Moloney.  Kaye Holman made a motion to amend the motion to include Tom Tyron acting as chair until 
the election, seconded by Joe Moloney.  Motion carried unanimously.  
 
COMMENTS AND COMMUNICATIONS: 
Tom Tyron welcomed all the new members to the Board.  
 







Board of Zoning Appeals 
Meeting Minutes  
03/20/01 
 


 4


ADJOURNMENT:  A motion was made by Kaye Holman seconded by Tom Tyron, to adjourn the 
meeting.   Motion carried unanimously and the meeting was adjourned at 6:40 p.m. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
Carol Foote, Recording Secretary 
 
 
Tom Tyron, Chairperson 
 
 









CITY OF LUDINGTON 
BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS 


Minutes – July 17, 2001 
 


A regular meeting of the Ludington Board of Zoning Appeals was held on at the Ludington Municipal 
Building, 400 S Harrison St., Ludington, MI, and was called to order by Tom Tyron, Chairperson at 5:30 
p.m. 
 
PRESENT: Tom Tyron, Kaye Holman, Joe Moloney, Brian Purtee, Bonnie Vaught, Ken Vanderbilt 


 
ABSENT:  Greg Dykstra, Kathy Saxton (excused), and Christine Warne (excused) 
 
ALSO PRESENT: Building Inspector, John Healy and Recording  Secretary Carol Ann Foote 
 
ROLL CALL:  The roll call gave the above results. 
 
AGENDA APPROVAL:  A motion was made by Kaye Holman seconded by Ken Vanderbilt, to approve 
the agenda.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 
MINUTES:   A motion was made by Brian Purtee seconded by Joe Moloney, to approve the minutes of 
the meeting of April 17, 2001 with the addition of Ken Vanderbilt in attendance of the April meeting.  
Motion carried unanimously. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING: 
Consideration of a request from Craig Hansen for a variance of  5% (300 sq. ft.) from the allowed 35% of 
lot coverage in order to build a 10 X 15 ( 150 sq. ft.) addition to the existing dwelling at the following 
described property: ORIGINAL PLAT S 20 FT OF LOT 2 & N 20 FT OF LOT 3 BLOCK 15, also 
known as 205 N Lewis St. 
 
Recording Secretary, Carol A Foote, reported there were thirty-six notices sent with no response. 
 
Craig Hansen, 205 N. Lewis St., told the Board that since his lot was only 40 ft. he did not have the 
square footage a 60 ft. lot would have.  A 60 ft. lot would have 2,900 sq. ft. of coverage in my 
neighborhood.  My lot, being only 40 ft., can only have 1,940 sq. ft. of coverage.  I feel that I am being 
treated a little unfairly because of my lot size.  I am asking for consideration for an additional 5% of 
coverage to bring me a little closer to what I feel is normal for my neighborhood and the City of 
Ludington. 
 
Brian Purtee asked, with the structures that he already had there, wasn’t he already over the allowed 
coverage?  John Healy explained that the uncovered deck did not count towards the allowed coverage.   
He said that the existing deck would be removed to put in the addition.   Kaye Holman stated that he was 
already over the percentage allowed.  Mr. Hansen said that he was now at about 37%.  Bonnie Vaught 
asked how close he was to the North property line.  Mr. Hansen said that he was three feet from the line.  
That was where it was existing when he bought it.  Tom Tyron asked how long he lived there.  Mr. 
Hansen stated that he had lived there for twenty-one years.  He did not know about the lot coverage when 
he bought it.  Bonnie Vaught asked Mr. Hansen if he had considered two stories.  Mr. Hansen told her 
that as far as expense wise, that was a little unrealistic for him.  Mr. Hansen told the Board that with 
teenagers living at home, the living space was crowded.  It would be for convenience for the family.  
With a typical Michigan basement, his options are limited. 
 
Public hearing closed. 
 
Tom Tyron read the variance scorecard. 







Board of Zoning Appeals 
Meeting Minutes  
07/17/01 
 


 2


 
Type: Dimensional Variance 
 
Practical Difficulties:  Ken Vanderbilt said that the lot was smaller.  Brian Purtee said that he did not see a 
practical difficulty.  He was already over the allowed percentage.  It was not a unique lot.  There were 
other lots in the City that size.   
 
Kaye Holman made a motion to deny the request for an additional 5% of lot coverage, seconded by Brain 
Purtee.   
 
Joe Moloney asked for more of an explanation of Practical Difficulty.  Brian Purtee explained that it must 
be a unique situation, such as a pie shaped lot, etc. 
 
Motion carried unanimously to deny the request. 
 
Consideration of a request by Dan and Dori Astrowski for a seven foot (7 ft) side yard setback variance in 
order to have a shade trellis over the existing deck at the following described property QUEVILLON'S 
ADDITION LOT 9 BLOCK 9 , also known as 603 New William St. 
 
Tom Tyron told the Board that he had a conflict of interest and turned the chair over to Kaye Holman. 
 
Kaye Holman read a letter from Dori Astrowski regarding a shade trellis that was constructed on their 
property.   
 
Dori Astrowski submitted pictures of the trellis.  She stated that there had been a misunderstanding with 
John Healy, and they had already put it up.  Mr. Astrowski said that they had moved in the house 45 years 
ago and just about everything was there already.  Mrs. Astrowski said the fence was a wire fence when 
they moved there and they switched it to a wood fence in the seventies.  Bonnie Vaught asked when the 
deck was put on.  Mrs. Astrowski stated that it was poured in 1978 and three years ago had the wood put 
on.  The neighbors that this would most effect are here, and we have their approval. 
 
Recording Secretary, Carol A Foote, reported there were 49 notices sent with no response. 
 
Mrs. Astrowski stated that they had no intention of ever closing it in; they just need shade on the deck. 
 
Ken Vanderbilt asked if they had secured permits for the fence.   Mrs. Astrowski  said that they had a 
permit to build the back porch.  She stated that the contractor had gotten the permits for everything.  
Bonnie Vaught asked what was everything.  Mrs. Astrowski said that she assumed the contractor had a 
permit for everything.  Ken Vanderbilt asked if they had a permit for the fence when they changed it.  Mr. 
Astrowski said definitely yes.  Ken Vanderbilt asked if they got a permit when they put the trellis up.  
Mrs. Astrowski said that she was told that as long as it was freestanding, they did not need a permit.  She 
said that John Healy said that he did not remember the call.  We did not ask him to come out, just 
believed what he said.  I am probably at fault, John is at fault.   
 
Bonnie Vaught said that the trellis did not look freestanding.  Mrs. Astrowski pointed out the post and 
said that it was not attached to the roof.  Kaye Holman said that it was right on the lot line.  The issue was 
not that it was free standing.  Even if there were no cover, it would still have to be set back five feet.   
Brian Purtee stated that even if there had not been a misunderstanding, they would have had to follow the 
ordinance.  Mr. Astrowski said that they would have done something else.  Joe Moloney asked if they 







Board of Zoning Appeals 
Meeting Minutes  
07/17/01 
 


 3


could go the other way to have shade.  Mrs. Astrowski said that you have to have the whole thing covered 
for shade.  Mr. Astrowski said, not only that, there is $5,000 up there.   
 
Phil Ruschkewicz, 210 W. Tinkham, said that he thought it was a big improvement.  It does not affect us 
at all. 
 
Mary Rschkewicz, 210 W. Tinkham, said that it was nice for them.  It was very pretty, a welcome change.  
It cut the view to the store.   
 
Public hearing closed. 
 
Kaye Holman read the variance scorecard. 
 
Practical difficulties: 
 
Joe Moloney said no.  Brian Purtee said no.  Ken Vanderbilt said that it was very beautiful, but strictly for 
their convenience, no practical difficulty. 
 
Bonnie Vaught made a motion to deny the request for a 7 ft. side yard setback variance seconded by Joe 
Moloney.  Motion carried unanimously to deny the request. 
 
OLD BUSINESS: 
None 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT: 
Craig Hansen asked to speak with Brian Purtee after to meeting to explain to him the unique situations 
that would create a practical difficulty.  Joe Moloney said that he would like to discuss it too. 
 
ADJOURNMENT:  A motion was made by Kaye Holman seconded by Joe Moloney to adjourn the  
meeting.  Motion carried unanimously, and meeting was adjourned at 6:20 p.m. 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
Carol Ann Foote, Recording Secretary 
 
Tom Tyron, Chairman 


 
 
 
 
 


 
 








 


 


 
 


CITY OF LUDINGTON 
BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS 


Minutes – September 18, 2001 
 


A regular meeting of the Ludington Board of Zoning Appeals was held on September 18, 2001 at the 
Ludington Municipal Building, 400 S Harrison St., Ludington, MI, and was called to order by Tom 
Tyron, Chairperson at 5:30 p.m. 
 
PRESENT: Tom Tyron, Kaye Holman, Brian Purtee, Christine Warne, Ken Vanderbilt 


 
ABSENT:  Greg Dykstra, Kathy Saxton (excused), Bonnie Vaught (conflict), Joe Moloney 
 
ALSO PRESENT: Building Inspector, John Healy and Recording  Secretary Carol Ann Foote 
 
ROLL CALL:  The roll call gave the above results. 
 
AGENDA APPROVAL:  A motion was made by Ken Vanderbilt, seconded by Kaye Holman, to approve 
the agenda.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 
Tom Tyron took this time to address the board regarding his thoughts on the recent disaster .  He stated 
that the disaster is about what we do as a democracy.  While we are only a small part of this country, it 
brings home what it is all about.  There  are little cities all over the country that make decisions that are 
important to the citizens.  What we do is very insignificant; it is all a part of the big thing.  While we all 
don’t always agree, I am proud to be in a system that we can do this.   I grieve for the people of New 
York. 
 
MINUTES:   A motion was made by Brian Purtee, seconded by Kaye Holman to approve the minutes of 
the meeting of July 17, 2001 as written.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING: 
To consider a request from Mr. and Mrs. Steven Demchuk for a variance from the total number of 
accessory buildings allowed (2) according to Zoning Ordinance #23-00, Section 500.4:2, Accessory 
Buildings in Residential Districts, for the following described property: SIXTH ADDITION LOT 3 
BLOCK 7, also known as 1006 N Robert St. 
 
Recording Secretary, Carol A Foote, reported there were forty-four notices sent with no response. 
 
Steven Demchuk, 1006 N Robert St., told the Board that the request that was written up was not quite 
right.  I am requesting to replace an existing building that was damaged in the storm.  I’m not asking to 
add any buildings.  I have three buildings.  One has been there since 57, one since 79 and the one in 
question since 1984 and it was totaled out due to the heavy storm that we had.  It was unsafe and declared 
a hazard.  The insurance company told me that I had to get rid of that building because my liability would 
not apply if anyone got hurt.  So I replaced it with a smaller building that looks very nice and is in 
keeping with the rest of the neighborhood.  So I am asking for a nonconforming building, to leave that 
building were it is.  I figured I was all right because no one has ever complained about the building.  At 
the time it was put in before, I had permission to put it in.  I didn’t need permits for the first one or third 
one, the second one I did and got.  So I am asking for a non-conforming building to maintain or keep the 
building I have.  I replaced a 10 X 14 building with a 10 X 12 building. A mini barn.  I have photographs 
here, if you would like to see them.  Tom Tyron said that he would like to see them.  He drove by the 
place and was having trouble trying to figure out which was which.  Mr. Demchuk pointed out the 







Board of Zoning Appeals 
Meeting Minutes  
09/18/01 
 


 2


damaged building and the building that replaced it.  He told the Board that he needed the building because 
he has a medical problem.  He has had a double bypass, a quadruple bypass, prostrate cancer and is a 
diabetic.  He has been told he must keep active.  So I use this building to store my equipment that I use to 
maintain my yard and keep myself active.  I have a three-stall garage with a workshop in one stall and the 
other two taken up with cars.  I do need the building.  I was told if the cost to repair that building exceeds 
50% it could not be allowed.  I submitted a quotation showing that it was less than 50% to repair the 
building, but I couldn’t get the panels, because the company that made that building went out of business.  
They made it for Arrow Products and they no longer make those buildings.  I couldn’t buy the panels 
anymore and I couldn’t repair it.  Then we have children next door, a daycare center with a lot of small 
kids.  They play in our driveway and get in that building.  I didn’t want any of them to get hurt.  We have 
daycare children walking down the alley and I didn’t want that building exposed there were they could 
get hurt.   
 
Tom Tyron closed the public hearing.  
 
Kaye Holman wanted to know if 1,184 sq. ft. was correct for the three buildings.  Brian Purtee said that it 
was.   
 
Tom Tyron asked if there were practical difficulties. 
 
Kaye Holman responded no.  Christine Warne  said that she thought that is why he brought up the 
disability, to have easy access to things.  Brian Purtee told her that it had to be with the property, not the 
person.  Ken Vanderbilt stated that a variance stayed with the property, it is not an issue with an 
individual.   
 
Joe Moloney arrived at the meeting at 5:40 p.m. 
 
Tom Tyron read section 500.42 of the zoning ordinance.  The number of buildings that are there is a 
violation.  The area of a single building cannot exceed 816 sq. ft; the garage exceeds that at 964.  
Maximum floor area should not exceed 25% of rear yard area.  Obviously it does that at about 50%.   
 
Kaye Holman said that there were no practical difficulties.    
 
Kaye Holman made a motion to deny the request for a third building, seconded by Joe Moloney.   
 
Tom Tyron stated that where he was getting hung up was he already had the buildings and just replaced a 
building that he had.  I don’t know if he put up the buildings without permission, he didn’t have a permit 
for two of them.   He may have needed the permits, but just didn’t get them.  I guess I understand what we 
are doing here, I have always understood that.  I also understand that people have to be able to use their 
property.  I do see that this exceeds the use substantially and crowds it up to make it a problem for fire 
protection.  I support the motion. 
 
Kaye Holman stated that he could have repaired that building.  He chose to take it down.  
 
A vote was taken on the motion and was carried unanimously.   
 
Mr. Demchuck asked to speak.  He said that they are denying his request and right next door the City has 
allowed five accessory buildings.  One was either given or sold to Smith, placed on the property with City 
equipment, City employees, during working hours, on the lot line.  That has been going on for years and 
the zoning office has been aware of it.  Also, it is a junkyard that is a safety hazard that hasn’t been 







Board of Zoning Appeals 
Meeting Minutes  
09/18/01 
 


 3


cleaned up and has been there for years.  That is strictly an eyesore and the worst yard in the whole City, 
yet the City has done nothing about it.  But you deny me. 
 
Tom Tyron told Mr. Demchuck that he did not want to argue with him, but would explain what the Board 
does.    We are a Board that hears individual cases.  I understand what you are saying about your 
neighbor, sir, but that has nothing to do with us.  Mr. Demchuck said that it had to do with the zoning 
office.  Mr. Tyron  said that if the neighbors were there under the same circumstance, the same would 
happen.  They are like a court of law.  We have no option but to follow the Ordinance.   
 
Mr. Demchuck said that number 1; he was asked to put in for a building permit and did.  He said he 
waited a month and got a letter stating that if it is over 50%, he could not put it in.  He submitted a bid 
showing it was less than 50%, if the panels were available.  They were not available because Esco 
Corporation, out of New Jersey, went out of business.  I could not get other panels.  Then when I 
submitted that, I got another letter saying you moved a building.  I replaced it on an existing floor that 
was there.  I did take the entire building off.  One building came off, another went on.  The old building 
was not off the property when the new on was put on.  I was following the letter of the law, so to speak.  
There have been no complaints that I know of from anyone in the whole neighborhood.  I have conformed 
to the requirements as to what the zoning says.  Why am I being discriminated against, because I have the 
best example, right next door to me that has been allowed by the City and the Zoning Administrator?   
 
Tom Tyron said that they could not argue with him on that.  He could appeal the decision to the Circuit 
Court.  The request has been denied. 
 
Mr. Demchuck said that he guessed he would because he felt he had been discriminated against.  How 
was he going to move the building?  I think I should hire an attorney and bring a lawsuit against the City, 
jointly between the City and the Zoning office and individually against John Healy.  I think there is a 
personal deal here.  Mr. Tyron told him that it was his option, but this case was closed.   
 
OLD BUSINESS: 
Brian Purtee asked John Healy if he had heard any news on the Swiekhardt denial.  Mr. Healy told him 
that they would be taking depositions this month. 
 
Kaye Holman wanted to know the disposition of the Astrowski denial.  Mr. Healy said that he heard that 
they would be bringing the property into compliance. 
 
NEW BUSINESS: 
Christine Warne wanted to know if they were going to respond to any seminars.  John Healy said that he 
would try to have something arranged with the City Planner, Larry Nix.   
 
PUBLIC COMMENT: 
None 
 
ADJOURNMENT:  A motion was made by Kaye Holman seconded by Christine Warne to adjourn the 
meeting.  Motion carried unanimously, and meeting was adjourned at 6:00 p.m. 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
Carol Ann Foote, Recording Secretary 
 
Tom Tyron, Chairman 







Board of Zoning Appeals 
Meeting Minutes  
09/18/01 
 


 4


 
 
 
 
 


 
 





